FEC (EXHIBIT)

See the following pages for the forms related to attendance for credit/promotion issues:

Exhibit A: Attendance Review Committees

1 Page

Exhibit B: Parent Notification of Excessive Absences and Possible Retention – Elementary

1 Page

Exhibit C: Student/Parent Notification of Excessive Absences and Possible Loss of Credit

2 Pages

Exhibit D: Attendance Appeal Form

1 Page

Exhibit E: Attendance for Credit – Teacher Review

1 Page

Exhibit F: Alternative Learning Plan Template

1 Page

Exhibit G: Administrative Representative's Report/Attendance Review Committee Meeting

Minutes - 2 Pages

Exhibit H: Student/Parent Notification of Attendance Decision

1 Page

Exhibit I: Parent Notification of Student's Cancellation of Remote Learning

1 Page

Exhibit J: Medical Certification for COVID-19 High Risk Exemption

1 Page

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT A

ATTENDANCE REVIEW COMMITTEES

MAKE-UP OF ATTENDANCE COMMITTEE

Each campus will establish an attendance committee in accordance with Board Policy FEC(LOCAL) and will consist of the following members as appointed by the campus principal or designee:

- At least one campus administrator
- A campus counselor
- At least four (or more) teacher(s) representing each grade level and/or content represented in the school and must comprise the majority of the committee
- Any additional professional staff members as deemed necessary by the campus principal or designee.

The campus principal or designee will serve as leader of each campus attendance committee.

DUTIES

The committee is empowered with the following duties:

- Review any student's attendance when in danger of falling below the *90 percent threshold and make decisions regarding appropriate intervention.
- Review the attendance records of students who have fallen below the 90 percent threshold and determine if awarding class credit is appropriate because of extenuating circumstances associated with their absences. The committee may also assign an Alternative Learning Plan or additional assignments in accordance with board policies to regain credit.
- The committee should give the student and/or parent the opportunity to present any information to the committee about the absences and to discuss ways to earn or regain credit or to be awarded a final grade.

Reference 90% = 18 days absent 75% = 44 days absent

GUIDELINES FOR AWARDING CREDIT

In reaching consensus regarding a student's absences, the committee shall:

- Attempt to ensure that its decision is in the best interest of the student.
- Consider whether the absences were for reasons out of the student or parent's control.
- Consider that a transfer or migrant student incurs absences only after his or her enrollment in the District.
- Consider the acceptability and authenticity of documented reasons for the student's absences.

DATE ISSUED:09/01/2020 REVISED: 08/20/2021 FEC (REGULATION)

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT B

Parent Notification of Excessive Absences and Possible Retention – Elementary/Middle

		Date of N	Votice
Student's Name			Student ID Number
Campus	Grade Level		School Year

DEAR PARENTS:

Your child is in danger of being retained due to excessive absences that have adversely affected your child's academic progress. Additionally, state law requires a student to be in class 90 percent of the time to be considered for promotion to the next grade. It is important to understand; the state law does not distinguish between excused and unexcused absences in fulfilling the 90 percent attendance requirement.

If your child falls below the 90 percent attendance requirement, you may schedule a conference with the Campus Administrator to discuss any extenuating circumstances, provide documentation, and create a plan for your student to complete all required make-up work, or an alternative learning plan.

The administrative representative (if student's attendance is above 75% of the day the class is offered) or an attendance review committee (if the student's attendance is below the 75% of the day the class is offered) may grant promotion if:

- The student's absences fall under one of the extenuating circumstances specific in Board Policy
 - If makeup work is completed satisfactorily, excused absences that are allowed under compulsory attendance requirements shall be considered days of attendance for award of credit or final grade. [See FEA(LEGAL) at EXCUSED ABSENCES FOR COMPULSORY ATTENDANCE DETERMINATIONS.]
 - 2. A transfer or migrant student incurs absences only after his or her enrollment in the District.
 - 3. The committee shall consider the acceptability and authenticity of documented reasons for the student's absences
 - 4. The committee shall consider whether the absences were for reasons out of the student's or parent's control.
 - 5. The committee shall consider whether or not the student has completed assignments, mastered the essential knowledge and skills, and maintained passing grades in the course or subject.
 - 6. The student or parent shall be given an opportunity to present any information to the committee about the absences and to discuss ways to earn or regain credit or be awarded a final grade and the student completes all required make-up work

or;

 The student successfully completes the Alternative Learning Plan assigned and provides documentation of completion within the timeframe designated on the written plan.

DATE ISSUED: 09/01/2020 REVISED: 08/20/2021 FEC (REGULATION)

Eagle Mountain-Saginaw ISD 220918

ATTENDANCE ATTENDANCE FOR CREDIT

FEC (EXHIBIT)

A final determination regarding promotion will not be made until the end of the year when all absences have been considered and it is determined that the student has achieved a passing grade in the regular coursework assigned by the teacher. If your child accrues additional absences after the creation of the Alternative Learning Plan, the Assistant Principal (above 75% attendance) or the Attendance Review Committee (below 75% attendance) will have to reconvene to address the additional absences.

If the campus-level attendance review committee denies promotion to the next grade, the student's parent or guardian may appeal the decision in accordance with Board policy, FNG(LOCAL). The District is not obligated to provide an appeal process to a student who is denied promotion due to his/her failure to successfully complete the Alternative Learning Plan within the designated timeframe.

If you have any questions, please call me at the number provided below.

Sincerely,		
Administrator's Sign	ature	Phone Number
Copy to: Student; C	ampus Principal: Administrator Assigned	-
Date of Notification:		Method of Notification: (email and/or mail)
Date of Notification:		Metriod of Notalication, (email and/or mail)

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT C

Student/Parent Notification of Excessive Absences and Possible Loss of Credit- Secondary

		Date of Notice:		
Student's Name			Student ID Number	
Campus	Grade Level		School Year	

DEAR STUDENT AND PARENTS:

The above-named student is in danger of losing course credit or being denied promotion because of excessive absences as noted on the attached attendance record. State law requires a student to be in class 90 percent of the days a class is offered in order to gain credit or to be considered for promotion. The attendance for credit statute does not distinguish between excused or unexcused absences in fulfilling the 90 percent attendance requirement.

Course(s) Student has fallen below the 90 Percent attendance requirement

Reference: 90 percent = 18 days absent 75 percent = 44 days absent

A student whose attendance falls below the 90 percent attendance requirement shall not be eligible for course credit or promotion unless requirements imposed by an attendance review committee are completed by the student.

The administrative representative (if student's attendance is above 75% of the days the class(es) is offered) or attendance review committee (if the student's attendance is less than 75% of the days the class(es) is offered) may award credit or grant promotion if:

- The student's absences fall under one of the extenuating circumstances specified in Board Policy FEC(LOCAL) and the student completes all required make-up work: or
- The student successfully completes the Alternative Learning Plan assigned and provides documentation of completion within the timeframe designated on the written plan.

If the student fails to successfully complete the plan, or when the student's attendance drops below 75 percent of the days the class is offered, the student, parent or guardian may request award of credit by submitting a written appeal to the attendance committee.

Appeals for credit may be filed at any time the student receives notice but, in any event no later than 30 days after the last day of classes. The attendance committee shall review the student's entire attendance record and the reasons for absences and shall determine whether to award credit. The committee may also, whether an appeal is filed or not, review the records of any student whose attendance drops below 75 percent of the days the class is offered. Students who have lost credit because of excessive absences may regain credit by fulfilling the requirements established by the attendance review committee.

DATE ISSUED: 09/01/2020 REVISED: 08/20/2021 FEC (REGULATION)

FEC (EXHIBIT)

Additionally, the student must have a passing semester or yearly average (70 or above), as appropriate, in order to receive course credit or be granted promotion. The academic grade earned in a course shall not be affected by the completion of the Alternative Learning Plan. The grade earned and recorded will be based upon work assigned by the teacher. The Alternative Learning Plan assignments will be graded on a pass/fail system which will not affect the student's numerical or course grade.

A final determination regarding credit will not be made until the end of the semester or year when all absences have been considered and it is determined that the student has achieved a passing grade in the regular coursework assigned by the teacher. If the student accrues additional absences after the creation of the Alternative Learning Plan, the administrative representative (above 75%) or the Attendance Review Committee (below 75%) will have to reconvene to address the additional absences.

If the campus-level attendance review committee denies credit(s) or promotion to the next grade, the student or the student's parent/guardian may appeal the decision in accordance with Board policy FNG(LOCAL). The District is not obligated to provide an appeal process to a student who is denied credit or promotion due to his/her failure to successfully complete the Alternative Learning Plan within the designated timeframe.

If you have any questions, please call me at the number provided below. Sincerely,

Administrator's Signature	Phone Number
Copy to: Student; Campus Principal; Administrator Assigned	

Printed Student Name and ID number:

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT D

CAMPUS ATTENDANCE REVIEW COMMITTEE APPEAL FORM FOR EXTENUATING CIRCUMSTANCES

All Appeal Forms may be submitted at any time, but no later than 30 calendar days after the last day of each semester without exception. [See FEC (LOCAL)].

Date and Time submitted to Campus Administrator:								
Rec	Received by:							
1.	Parents/Guardians and Students shall submit an Attendance Appeal Form to the Campus Attendance Committee, when extenuating circumstances exist that warrant consideration when a student's attendance drops below 90% (percent) of the days the class is offered.							
	Extenuating circumstances:							
	 If makeup work is completed satisfactorily, excused absences that are allowed under compulsory attendance requirements shall be considered days of attendance for award of credit or final grade. [See FEA(LEGAL) at EXCUSED ABSENCES FOR COMPULSORY ATTENDANCE DETERMINATIONS.] 							
	 A transfer or migrant student incurs absences only after his or her enrollment in the District. The acceptability and authenticity of documented reasons for the student's absences. The absences were for reasons out of the student's or parent's control. 							
	 The student has completed assignments, mastered the essential knowledge and skills, and maintained passing grades in the course or subject. 							
Suppose some some some some some some some s	pleted Appeal Forms with supporting documentation will be reviewed by the Campus Attendance Committee. porting documentation must be submitted with all Appeal Forms. The Campus Attendance Committee may grant oval to include conditions, or may grant a denial. All Campus Attendance Appeal decisions will be municated to the Parent/Guardian, Student, Counselor, Registrar, Campus Principal and the Assistant Principal ritten notification of email and/or mail.							
Plea	se complete and submit the following:							
Deta	ils of the extenuating circumstance in legible form and use the back of this form if needed:							
Apı	peals are not complete without attaching supporting documentation.							
Pare	ent Printed Name:							
Pare	ent Signature:							
Pare	ent email and phone number:							
Stud	lent Signature:							
Atte	ndance Committee Review Date:							
DA:	TE ISSUED: 09/01/2020 Page 1 of							

REVISED: 08/20/2021 FEC (REGULATIONS

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT E

Attendance for Credit – Teacher Review Form

Student's Name			Student'	s ID Number	
Campus	Grade I	.evel	Scl	nool Year	
The administrative representative alternative learning activities to reattendance review committee neattendance	egain credit or be	considered for promotion.	etermine whe The administ	ther or not he/sh rative representa	e may complete tive or the
Course/Subject	Current Grade(s)	I #		of Absences Term of Course Unexcused	Total Days Enrolled Per Term of Course
Teacher		☐ 1st Sem. ☐ 2nd Sem. ☐ Full Year (Pre-K - Gr 8)			
Has student completed all make If no, what make-up work is out:			□ No		
Has the student met the essenti If no, please explain.					
What additional course requirer promotion? Please list or attach assigning an alternative learning	additional cours	se requirements or informat	to regain cre ion that may	dit or be consider be beneficial to t	red for he committee in
Teacher Signature				Date	
Please return this completed	worksheet to	the person designated b	elow by the	 date indicated.	
Administrator Assigned				Date Due	
Copy to: Teacher					

Campus Principal Administrator Assigned

FEC (EXHIBIT)

		_	_	_
$-\mathbf{v}$	டு	\Box	-	
FΧ	П٤	7		_

Alternative Learning Plan

Student's Name	Grade Level	Date of Plan

The administrative representative or the Attendance Review Committee has reviewed the above-named student's records and has developed the following alternative learning activities to determine where he/she may regain credit and/or be granted promotion. The alternative learning activities will be graded on a pass/fail basis. Regardless of the alternative learning activities assigned, the student must maintain an overall passing grade in the regular coursework assigned by the teacher for the semester of yearly average, as appropriate, in order to receive credit or be granted promotion.

The following alternative learning activities may be assigned to each course in which the student needs to regain credit:

- Complete additional assignments, as specified by committee or teacher.
- Satisfy time -on task requirements, before and/or afterschool.
- 3. Attend tutorial sessions as scheduled.
- 4. Attend Saturday school.
- 5. Attend summer school.

- 6. Attend before or after school classes.
- 7. Complete individual student contract. (Please attach)
- Maintain the attendance standards for the rest of the semester.
- 9. Take an examination to earn credit.
- 10. Other options deemed appropriate by the principal or committee.

Course(s) approved for Alternative Learning Activities	Alternate Learning Activity Assigned (indicated by number of items listed above)	Date Required for Completion		
1.				
2.				
3.				
4.				
5.				
6.				
7.				
8.				
Comments:				

Note: A student who does not take advantage of the alternative learning activities offered or fails to provide documentation to the administrative representative within the designated timeframe will receive no course credit and/or will not be promoted. If additional absences are accrued, the administrative representative (if attendance is 75% or higher will need to review or the Attendance Review Committee (if attendance is less than 75%) will need to reconvene to address the additional absences.

Administrative Representative Assigned to verify completion of activities assigned	Student's Signature Upon Receipt	Date	
	Parent Signature	Date	
VERIFICATION OF	COMPLETION – FOR ADMINISTRATIVE USE ONLY		
Principal's Signature	Documentation of completion was provided within timeframe designated ☐ Yes ☐ No	Date	

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT G

Administrative Representative's Report/ Attendance Review Committee Meeting Minutes

Stu	denť	's Na	me						Grade Level	Date of Meeting
lear and	ning /or c	acti ons	vitie ider	es in atio	ord n of	er to mak	reg (e-u)			consider assigning alternative se considered for promotion
	ef sı jes:		nar	y of	ma	keu	p w	ork completed a	nd TEKS mastered ba	sed on Teacher Review
									ew committee concerns a elop the student's Altern	and comments should be native Learning Plan."
Di	scuss	ion:								
		1	Cou	rses	i				he Attendance Revie	
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	extenuating circumst	ances and required make up	assigned. Absences were due to work was completed.
								within the timeframe	edesignated on the student's	
								Credit may be regained hours waived	ed, if student makes up d, if any.	ofhours, with
								Credit denied.		
Date of Initial Alternative Learning Plan		Administrative Representa	tive Verifying completion of Plan							

DATE ISSUED: 09/01/2020 REVISED: 08/20/2021 FEC (REGULATION)

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT G

Administrator Signature										Date
Counselor's Signature										Date
Committee Member's Signature (required for Attendance Review Co									ommittee only)	Date
Committee Member's Signature (required for Attendance Review Co								for Attendance Review Co	ommittee only)	Date
Com	mitte	ee Me	embei	r's Sig	natui	re (rec	uirec	for Attendance Review Co	ommittee only)	Date
Committee Member's Signature (required for Attendance Review Co									ommittee only)	Date
evie	ew c	om	mitte	e is	ma				,.	nistrative representative/attendance
								FINAL REVIE	W AND DECISI	ION
			Cou	rses				Final decisio		nistrative Representative or the Review Committee
1	2	3	4	5_	6	7	8			ning Plan assigned. Absences were due to make up work was completed.
								Credit regained. Stude timeframe designated		assigned Alternative Learning Plan within the plan.
								Credit regained. Stud waived, if any.	ent made up	of hours, with hours
								Credit denied.		
Vote	: the	stu	dent	must	trec	eive a	pas	sing grade in a course i	n order for credit t	o be considered.
Administrative Representative's Signature								ature	Date	
Committee Member's Signature									Date	

Date

Date

Date

DATE ISSUED: 09/01/2020 REVISED: 08/20/2021 FEC (REGULATION)

Committee Member's Signature

Committee Member's Signature

Committee Member's Signature

ATTENDANCE ATTENDANCE FOR CREDIT EXHIBIT H FEC (EXHIBIT)

STUDENT/ PARENT NOTIFICATION OF ATTENDANCE DECISION

			Date of	Notice	
Student's Name			<u> </u>	Student ID Numbe	r
Campus	Gra	ade Level	11111	!	School Year
DEAR STUDENTS AND PARENTS:		****			
The above-named student or pare	ent of the st	tudent su	bmitted	a written appeal	for an attendance review
committee to review his/her exce				• •	
or promotion could be granted.					
net and made the following deci	sions regard	ling credi	t/promo	tion:	
Course/Subject	Credit Re	gained	(Course/Subject	Credit Regained
1.	□Yes□		5.		☐ Yes ☐ No
2.	☐ Yes ☐	No (5.		☐ Yes ☐ No
3.	□ Yes □	No	7.	111 111	☐ Yes ☐ No
4.	□ Yes □	No 8	3.		☐ Yes ☐ No
The student's records will be upd	ated to refl	act tha d			
representative/Attendance Revie f the campus attendance review student or the student's parent/g FNG(LOCAL). However, if the den the alternative learning plan with	w Committe committee guardian ma ial of credit in the desig	ee as stat denies co ly appeal or promo gnated tir	ted above ourse creather the deci	e. dit(s) or promot sion in accordand s due to the stud	ion to the next grade, the ce with Board Policy ent's failure to complete
representative/Attendance Review If the campus attendance review student or the student's parent/g FNG(LOCAL). However, if the den the alternative learning plan with appeal should be delivered to the Directo Dr. Jim 1600 M Fort Wo	w Committee guardian maial of credit in the design following a rof Student F. chadwell ustang Rocorth, Texas	denies con appeal or promognated tire address: Engager Administ k Road 76179	ted above ourse creathe deci- otion was meframe ment ration Bu	e. edit(s) or promot sion in accordance side to the student is not the student is not side side side side side side side side	ion to the next grade, the ce with Board Policy ent's failure to complete
representative/Attendance Review If the campus attendance review student or the student's parent/g FNG(LOCAL). However, if the den the alternative learning plan with appeal should be delivered to the Directo Dr. Jim 1600 M Fort Wo	w Committee guardian maial of credit in the design following a rof Student F. chadwell ustang Rocorth, Texas	denies con appeal or promognated tire address: Engager Administ k Road 76179	ted above ourse creathe deci- otion was meframe ment ration Bu	e. edit(s) or promot sion in accordance side to the student is not the student is not side side side side side side side side	ion to the next grade, the ce with Board Policy ent's failure to complete ot entitled to appeal. Th

DATE ISSUED: 09/01/2020 REVISED: 08/20/2021 FEC (REGULATION)

Student Counselor

Registrar

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT I PARENT NOTIFICATION OF STUDENT'S CANCELLATION OF REMOTE LEARNING

[Insert date]

Dear Parents of [Insert name]:

Based on your child's attendance and/or academic performance in a remote instruction setting, **[insert school name]** is recommending cancellation of remote instruction for your child.

As part of our goal to ensure an effective learning environment for your child, we have evaluated attendance and/or grade level results of your child's performance in remote learning, based on the following criteria:

- Student has a class average of [insert criteria] or below in [insert course name]
- Student has [insert criteria] or more unexcused absences in [insert course name]

Beginning on [Insert date 2 weeks or more from date of this letter] your child will be required to return to in-person learning. If you have questions or concerns regarding this placement, please contact your child's campus at your earliest convenience at [insert phone number].

If you disagree with remote learning cancellation, you may appeal this decision in one of two ways:

- Submitting a medical exemption, which you can find attached to this
 communication, or you can download it here (LINK). This exemption requires
 health care provider certification that your child or an individual in his/her
 household has a high-risk medical condition as defined by the Centers for
 Disease Control. You can submit this appeal via email to [insert email].
- 2. Requesting a transition meeting. If you request a transition meeting (which can be held virtually), *[insert school name]* will contact you to schedule a transition meeting. The meeting will occur no sooner than 3 days after you request it, and your child may continue to learn remotely until the meeting has been held.

If you have questions about this notice, please contact [insert en

Sincerely,

[Insert name of campus principal] [Insert name of campus]

DATE ISSUED: 11/16/2020

FEC (EXHIBIT)

FEC (EXHIBIT)

EXHIBIT J

Medical Certification for COVID-19 High Risk Exemption

Student name:	Campus:							
Return to in-person instruction medica	certification exemption:							
Should a student be identified to return to in-person instruction, but the student or an individual in his/her household has a high-risk medical condition as defined by the Centers for Disease Control, this medical certification form will need to be completed.								
This form will need to be presented at the appeal meeting or emailed to the campus administration to claim the high-risk exemption for COVID-19.								
=	higher risk for severe illness from COVID-19 are those individuals with designated by the CDC, which provides as follows:							
Those individuals who are at higher risk of severe illness, as designated by the Centers for Disease Control (CDC), are those with conditions such as asthma, chronic lung disease, compromised immune systems (including from smoking, cancer treatment, bone marrow or organ transplantation, immune deficiencies, poorly controlled HIV or AIDS, or use of corticosteroids or other immune weakening medications), diabetes, serious heart disease (including heart failure, coronary artery disease, congenital heart disease, cardiomyopathies, and hypertension), chronic kidney disease undergoing dialysis, liver disease, or severe obesity.								
To be completed by the Health Ca	e Provider							
Health Care Provider's Address:								
Telephone:	Fax:							
1. Does the named student, or an in	dividual in the student's household, have an underlying medical or severe illness from COVID-19 as determined by the CDC and listed							
If yes, please provide the medica this student.	diagnosis of the underlying condition (as identified by the CDC) for							
Signature of Health Care Provide	Date							

DATE ISSUED: 11/16/2020

FEC (EXHIBIT)